## 2:18-mj-30055-DUTY Doc#1 Filed 01/26/18 Pg 1 of 4 Pg ID 1

AO 91 (Rev. 1171.1). Criminal Complaint

Special Agent:

AUSA: Jeanine Brunson Timothy Reintjes, FB1 Telephone: (313) 226-9597

Telephone: (313) 965-2323

## UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Eastern District of Michigan

United States of America

**DEVIN RODRIGUEZ** 

Case:2:18-mj-30055

Judge: Unassigned,

Filed: 01-26-2018 At 09:48 AM

USA v. DEVIN RODRIGUEZ(CMP)(MLW)

## CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

On or about the date(s) of			1/25/2018	in the county of	Wayne	in the
Eastern	District of	Michigan	the defendan	t(s) violated:		
Code Section			Offense Description			
18 U.S.C. §§ 2113(a) and 924(c)		Attempted Bank Robbery, Brandishing a Firearm during and in relation to a Crime of Violence				
					·	
		•	•			
This crin See Attached Affic	ninal complaint is davit	based on these	e facts:		,	
✓ Continued o	n the attached shee	it.		Complaining se Simothy Reintjes, FB1		
	and signed in my prese y <u>Zb. 2018</u>	nce.		Judgé 's signo		
City and state: Deta	roit, MI	···	Anth	ony P. Patti, United States Maj Printed name of		

## **AFFIDAVIT**

- I, Timothy Reintjes, a Special Agent (SA) with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Detroit Division, being duly sworn, depose and state as follows:
- 1. I have been employed as a Special Agent with the FBI since July 2010 and am currently assigned to the FBI Detroit Division's Violent Crime Task Force. As a federal agent, I am authorized to investigate violations of laws of the United States and to execute warrants issued under the authority of the United States.
- 2. I make this affidavit from personal knowledge based on my participation in this investigation, communications with others who have personal knowledge of the events and circumstances described herein, review of police reports, and information gained through training and experience. The information outlined below is provided for the limited purpose of establishing probable cause and, therefore, does not contain all details or all facts of which I am aware relating to this investigation.
- 3. On January 25, 2018 at approximately 3:45PM, the Citizens Bank located at 285 North Canton Center Road, Canton, Michigan was robbed by a white male subject wearing a white medical dressing on his face, black beanie, sunglasses, sweatpants, and black jacket. The subject pulled a black semi-automatic pistol when he entered and announced he was robbing the bank. The subject ordered the victim teller to remove money from the vault and she pressed the panic alarm when she entered the vault.
- 4. When Canton police officers arrived at the bank they observed that the subject, later identified as DEVIN RODRIGUEZ, had taken three bank employees and one customer hostage. Crisis negotiators began engaging RODRIGUEZ in negotiations to release the hostages. During those conversations RODRIGUEZ identified himself as "Devin" to the negotiators.
- 5. A short distance away, at 45530 Cherry Hill, Canton, Michigan, which is across the street from the bank, a silver Ford Focus, bearing Michigan license plate CLT 9039 was found running. A local business called into Canton Police Department that a suspicious vehicle, described as a silver

Ford was parked in their lot with the engine running and had been there over an hour.

- 6. A review of NCIC searches for that license plate revealed the vehicle was stopped by Van Buren Township Police Department RODRIGUEZ was issued a ticket in August of 2017 while driving the vehicle. Additionally, an inventory search of the vehicle by Canton officers revealed a jacket containing RODRIGUEZ's Michigan driver's license.
- 7. RODRIGUEZ, released the hostages inside the bank. A hostage was interviewed upon release by FBI Special Agent Timothy Reintjes and after viewing a photo of RODRIGUEZ she confirmed he was the individual who robbed the bank.
- 8. RODRIGUEZ surrendered to officers at approximately 7:39 PM on January 25, 2018 by walking out of the bank with his hands raised. RODRIGUEZ abandoned the firearm inside the bank.
- 9. The deposits of Citizens Bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, commonly known as the FDIC.

10. Based on the above, there is probable cause to believe DEVIN RODRIGUEZ committed attempted bank robbery and brandishing a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence in violation of 18 U.S.C §§ 2113(a) and 924(c). Said violations occurred on January 25, 2018 in the Eastern District of Michigan.

imothy Reintjes

Special Agent

Federal Bureau of Investigation

Sworn and subscribed before me this 26th day of January, 2018.

ANTHONY P. PATTI

UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE